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Branding Services 
Questions and Answers 

February 3, 2017 
 
 
Q1. After reviewing the RFP and other documents on the website, I was not able to find any 
information about the project budget. Can you please share the maximum budget available for 
this project? 

A1. This question seeks information that is not required to submit a responsive proposal. 

Q2. Whether companies from Outside USA can apply for this?    (like, from India or Canada) 

A2. This RFP does not prohibit firms located outside the United States from submitting a 
proposal. For the services required under this RFP, the Library anticipates the need for the 
successful proposer to engage in frequent communication, in-person meetings and community 
outreach.  All firms, including firms outside the United States, are required to factor any 
expenses including travel in their not-to exceed pricing. 

Q3. Whether we need to come over there for meetings? 

A3. Please see A2. 

Q4. Can we perform the tasks (related to RFP) outside USA?    (like, from India or Canada) 

A4. Please see A2. 

Q5. Can we submit the proposals via email? 

A5. No. As stated in the RFP, “the Library will not consider any proposal that is faxed or e-
mailed, whenever received, and will not consider any proposal received after the Proposal Due 
Date.” 

Q6. What has triggered the decision to launch an agency review at this time? 

A6. This process is part of an overall strategic planning process that was initiated due to 
changing needs of our customers and the changing role of the library.   

Q7. How many agencies have been invited to participate? 

A7.  This RFP is an open to all firms that meet the threshold criteria that is stated in RFP section, 
VI THRESHOLD CRITERIA. 
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Q8. When can agencies expect a response to questions submitted? 

A8. As stated in RFP section II Contact Information, “Responses to any questions received will 
be posted on the Library’s web site at http://www.queenslibrary.org/about-us/proposals-and-bids  
as they are received.” 

Q9. What do you anticipate the calendar of events to be after the proposal due date? i.e. When 
will a decision be made? 

A9. As per RFP section VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, Cover Letter, proposers, “In 
signing the cover letter, the Proposer agrees to be bound by the terms of this RFP and its 
submission hereunder for no less than 180 days.” 

The Queens Library anticipates making its selection within the stated 180 days.   

Q10. Who do you deem as your category competitors? 

A10. New York Public Library and Brooklyn Public Library are the primary category 
competitors. 

Q11. Is your current agency of record participating in this review? Will the awarded agency be in 
place of your current roster or in addition to? 

A11. Queens Library does not have an agency of record. 

Q12. Who makes up the agency review committee on your team? A list of names and titles is 
preferred. Will this committee review all proposals at every stage? 

A12. This question seeks information that is not required to submit a responsive proposal. 

Q13. At what stage will the cost proposal be reviewed? Who will review? 

A13. RFP section VIII. EVALUATION AND SELECTION provides information about the RFP 
evaluation criteria and the selection process. 

Proposers are required to submit cost information with their proposal in accordance to RFP 
section VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, B. Cost. Failure to provide your cost proposal as 
requested will be grounds for determining a proposal to be non-responsive. 

Q14. Will we be able to have a more detailed conversation on the scope you provided before we 
present costs? 

A14.  No. Proposers that are interested in responding to this RFP should familiarize themselves 
with all of the requirements of the RFP. RFP section VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, B. 
Cost, requires firms to submit with their proposal their not-to exceed fees for each Phase and 
sub-phase of the scope of work. 

http://www.queenslibrary.org/about-us/proposals-and-bids
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Q15. May we have a conversation/Q&A with the marketing team/review committee to discuss 
the Queens Library business, the brand (strengths, challenges, opportunities, threats), plans etc. 
This will help inform our response so we can present the most relevant and informed proposal. 

A15. No. As per RFP section II.CONTACT INFORMATION, “Questions regarding this RFP 
should be sent to: RFPcontact@queenslibrary.org   on or before February 1, 2017.” 

Proposer should familiarize themselves to the contents of this RFP with special attention to RFP 
sections V. SCOPE OF SERVICES, VI.THRESHOLD CRITERIA, VII. PROPOSAL 
REQUIREMENTS and IX.  PROPOSAL CONDITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS. 

Q16. Should our teams advance, would it be possible to schedule a conversation between being 
notified we are being interviewed and the interview itself? 

A16. No. As per RFP section II. CONTACT INFORMATION, “Interviews of the top-qualifying 
Proposers may be conducted at the Library’s discretion on a specific day or days to be disclosed 
later in the RFP process.”   

Q17. Please provide the estimated agency fee for the advertising contract. This will be critical in 
scoping, ideating and evaluating for this opportunity. 

A17.  Advertising is not included in this project. Please review RFP section V. SCOPE OF 
SERVICES. 

Q18. Please disclose your media spend, by touch-point, for 2016. 2015 would be a bonus as well 
so we can determine shifts/trends in spends overtime. Please note any big shifts for 2017 or 2018 
planning. 

A18. This question seeks information that is not required to submit a responsive proposal.  

Q19. Please name two or three of your most admired, brand campaigns – either in or outside of 
your specific category. What components of these campaigns resonate most closely with your 
team and why? 

A19.  This question seeks information that is not required to submit a responsive proposal.  

Q20. What has been truly successful in terms of your advertising? And what has been 
challenging? And why? 

A20.   Queens is an incredibly diverse community with a large immigrant population (about 50% 
foreign born) that speaks over 150 different languages.  Reaching and communicating to this 
diverse audience is very challenging.   

mailto:RFPcontact@queenslibrary.org
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Q21. VI. Threshold Criteria item 1 states "Proposer must have a minimum of at five (five) year 
experience in providing branding services".  Does this apply only to the Primary proposer or it is 
a requirement of any sub-contractors/sub-consultants as well?  

A21. The firm that is submitting the proposal must meet the stated threshold criteria for their 
proposal to be considered by the Library. Proposer’s subcontractors are not subject to the 
threshold criteria.  

Q22. My version of the RFP appears to be missing some text on page 5, Phase 2: Analysis & 
Recommendations, item number 1. 

“Customer Analysis: Analyze the customer and market research to deliver data-based insights 
which should the major and minor customer segments, the customers’ needs.” 

I believe this sentence is not possible to decode because it is likely missing text somewhere. 

A22. Please see Addendum No 1. 

Q23. The request mentions pre-defined segmented customer profiles you would like information 
on. How many profiles and geographies does that represent?    

A23. The Queens Library has 8-10 high-level profiles.  The Queens Library’s primary geography 
is Queens County, New York. The Queens Library would like to know from the successful 
proposers how the user profiles are distributed at the zip code level in Queens. 

Proposers should have the experience and qualifications in this scope area, demonstrate an 
approach to the scope of services and shall provide the requested not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q24. Under the brand awareness study, do you have any prior benchmark studies that you would 
like to continue to track metrics on or is this your first benchmark study?   

A24. This would be the Queens Library’s first benchmark study. 

Q25. Do you have existing brand metrics or key performance indicators that they would like to 
be incorporated in the analysis?   

A25. No existing brand metrics but we do have some basic key performance indicators. 

Q26. How many different personas/profiles would need to be created? Would the focus be on 
maintaining KEY persona clients, and additionally explore opportunities to attract NEW clients? 
We assume that Queens Library would provide existing personas (as the RFP mentions 
"revise"...in addition to creating).   

A26. The Queens Library currently has 8-10 basic profiles.  The Queens Library would be 
interested in creating new personas to attract new customers. Proposers should have the 
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experience and qualifications in this scope area and shall provide the requested not-to-exceed 
pricing. 

Q27. The RFP mentions design elements to support the new brand identity for print, outdoor, 
signage, exterior, and digital. Do you have an idea of what that scope will look like? As you 
know, especially with digital, there are many different avenues to explore. This could mean 
PowerPoint templates, websites (tablet, mobile, and desktop), apps, iconography, social media, 
e-books, etc. Print has many of the same when it comes to signage and banners, business letters 
or cards, library ID cards, envelopes, etc. We just want to make sure we scope the project 
correctly in developing a brand guideline for the library.   

A27. It is difficult for the Queens Library to scope out in detail since the Library does not have 
the expertise in this area. The Library’s initial thinking was at a minimum a style guide with 
specific deliverables for the major components in print, digital, outdoor, and interior. The 
Queens Library is seeking proposals from experienced and qualified firms to advise the Library 
in this area. Proposers should demonstrate their expertise in this area and shall provide their not-
to-exceed pricing. 

Q28. Reference: Phase I: Discovery & Research: Are you required to conduct the research 
(survey, stakeholder interviews, etc.) in a minimum number of languages other than English?  If 
so, which languages in addition to English?  The number of and actual languages we use will 
impact the costs of the research.  We are happy to make recommendations on the languages to 
utilize, i.e. Spanish, Korean, Cantonese, Russian, Hebrew, Creole.   

A28. The Queens Library would like proposals to include research in other languages besides 
English. Languages that should be included at a minimum are Spanish, Chinese, Russian, 
Bengali and Korean. The Queens Library is seeking proposals from experienced and qualified 
firms to advise the Library in this area. Proposers should demonstrate their expertise in this area 
and shall provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q29. Reference: Phase I: Discovery & Research: Item #1: Market Research:  General market and 
customer research to understand the population of Queens.  The research would include 
demographic and lifestyle information segmented by pre-defined customer profiles and 
geography as it related to the 62 community libraries.  Can you share the “‘pre-defined’ customer 
profiles” with us?  We will need to understand these profiles (i.e. demographics) in order to 
investigate recruiting costs and thus finalize overall costs.   

A29. The basic profiles that the Queens Library currently uses are students, immigrants, job-
seekers, adult learners, parents, older adults, and teens. Proposers should demonstrate their 
expertise in this area and shall provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q30. Reference: Phase I: Discovery & Research: Item #4:  Stakeholder interviews and/or focus 
groups; Conduct interviews with samples of key stakeholders which can include customers, staff, 
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elected officials, donors, and partners. Will the Queens Library provide a list of stakeholders (i.e. 
staff, donors, partners) and their contact information, which we can use to recruit participants for 
the stakeholder interviews/focus groups?   

A30. The Queens Library will share with the successful proposer its lists of stakeholders that it 
has identified. However, the Queens Library is seeking an experienced and qualified firm that is 
able to full complete this and all of the scope of services. Proposers should demonstrate their 
expertise in this area and shall provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q31. Reference: Phase 3 Define and Deliver: Item #3: Provide a brand story or narrative: This is 
the core story for the Queens Library brand. It should include who, what, when, why and how of 
the brand that should be understood by all of our stakeholders including customers, staff, elected 
officials, and others identified in the study. What will you want to retain regarding your current 
brand story / narrative (if anything) and what do you feel like the biggest challenge facing the 
library’s public perception is in recent years? 

A31. The Queens Library will want to retain the core of what a library does which is to provide 
lifelong learning resources to everyone. The Queens Library would like to change the perception 
that it is just a place to borrow books and other materials. The Queens Library would like to 
retain a firm that has the experience and qualifications in this area. Proposers should demonstrate 
their expertise in this area and shall provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q32. The RFP has a specified order of activities and deliverables within each phase. We see the 
benefit of recommending a slightly different order of activities, i.e., moving a couple of items out 
of the Analysis phase into Discovery. Are you open to proposals recommending a revised order 
of services that would still cover the total scope, or would you prefer strict adherence to the 
defined order? 

A32. RFP section, “VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS”, General Information, item 6. States: 

Detail how your firm plans to provide the scope of services including any 
deliverables. Proposers should provide their scope of work plan by each phase 
listed in the scope of work and by each number listed in each phase. The plan 
detail should line up with the cost table as requested in section B Cost below. 

If your firm recommends a different order of activities and deliverables please detail this 
information here. Proposers are still required to complete the required cost table in its original 
format and to provide their not to exceed pricing. 

Q33. In Phase 2 the RFP refers to “creating or revising customer personas”. Could you tell us 
how many customer segments (personas) you currently consider your audience make-up and 
when those personas were developed? 

A33. Please see the answer to question 26. 
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Q34. Can you provide an estimated start date for the branding project? 

A34.As per RFP section VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, Cover Letter, proposers, “In 
signing the cover letter, the Proposer agrees to be bound by the terms of this RFP and its 
submission hereunder for no less than 180 days.” 

The Queens Library anticipates making its selection within the stated 180 days. In addition, the 
Queens Library anticipates that the start date will occur within this 180 day period. 

Q35. Can you estimate how many interviews and focus groups the successful vendor will 
complete? 

A3. The Queens Library is seeking an experienced and qualified firm that is able to full complete 
the necessary amount of interviews and focus groups that it requires to fully complete the scope 
of services. Proposers should demonstrate their expertise in this area and communicate what they 
think is required and reflect these costs in their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q36. What is the budget for this engagement? This information is important for filling out the 
cost tables provided in the rfp (section B). are those tables not required? 

A36. Please see the answer to question 1. In addition, the Queens Library is seeking an 
experienced and qualified firm that is able to complete the full scope of services. Proposers need 
to demonstrate their expertise in their proposal and are required to complete the cost table in RFP 
section, “VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS”, B. Cost. 

As noted in this RFP section, “Failure to provide your cost proposal as requested will be grounds 
for determining a proposal to be non-responsive.” 

Q37. Is there audience data available for each of the libraries in the system? 

A37. Please see answers to questions 23, 26 and 29.  

Q38. Is there an mwbe requirement for awarding this contract?  

A38. This RFP does not have M/WBE goals. 

Q39. If we provide creative samples, is this counted in the 18 page limit of the general 
information section? 

A39. Creative samples are not counted towards the 18 page limit.  

Q40. Question #4 in general information (below) has a call out for an item (c) but there is 
nothing listed. Is there more to this? 
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A40. Thank you for pointing this error in the RFP. Please provide information for (a) and (b). 
There is no (c). 

Q41. Is there an incumbent agency currently providing branding services to the queens library? if 
the answer is yes, who is the incumbent agency? 

A41. The Queens Library does not have an incumbent agency. 

Q42. Phase 1, Point 1 asks us to consider “General market and customer research to understand 
the population of Queens. The research would include demographic and lifestyle information 
segmented by pre-defined customer profiles and geography as it relates to the 62 community 
libraries.” To clarify, does this research currently exist, or are you looking for the firm to conduct 
further research based on these profiles? 

A42. This research does not presently exist. The research is to be performed by the successful 
proposer. Proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed costs for these services. 

Q43. Phase 1, Point 4 asks us to “Conduct interviews with samples of key stakeholders which 
can include customers, staff, elected officials, donors and partners.” Have you identified these 
stakeholders, or would you anticipate the consultant to select these stakeholders? 

A43. The successful proposer is to perform this full scope of service which includes the 
successful proposer sampling the key stakeholders. The key stakeholders are to be identified by 
the Queens Library and the successful proposer. Proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed 
costs for these services. 

Q44. Point 6 asks us to “Establish brand metrics for the organization to measure brand awareness 
and sentiment.” What, if any, current metrics do you use?” 

A44. These metrics do not presently exist. The metrics are to be established by the successful 
proposer. Proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed costs for these services. 

Q45. Phase 2- You description asks us to “identify customer segments, customer journeys, brand 
attributes, competitive analysis, brand strengths and weaknesses.” Are you looking for these 
specific, concrete deliverables, or for a strategic direction based on the consultant's insight and 
research methods recommendations? We have our own process by which we collect information, 
which could or could not include this information. 
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A45. Please see Addendum 1. 

Q46. Phase 3, point 2 says “Specific names, taglines for brand to be developed.” Please clarify, 
are you asking us to develop names and taglines for the brand, or will this be done at a later date? 
By names do you mean you wish to rename your library system? 

A46. The Queens Library does not want a renaming of the library. The Queens Library is 
seeking an experienced and qualified firm that is cable of performing the full scope of services 
which includes providing a brand identity and architecture for the Library. Proposers are to 
provide their not-to-exceed costs for these services. 

Q47. Can you give a little more insight on what these services might include? 

A47. No. The Queens Library is seeking to retain a firm that has the experience and 
qualifications that can perform these services. 

Q48. Please clarify; do you require that the company has been in business for five years, or that 
each of our personnel has more than five years’ experience?  

A48. The stated threshold criteria require that the proposer have been in business for five years. 
The first paragraph of the RFP states, “The Queens Borough Public Library (the “Library”), 
hereby solicits proposals from experienced firms and individuals (hereinafter referred to as 
“Proposers”) in response to this Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to provide Branding services to 
the Library.” 

Q49. Can you help us understand the concern behind these format requirements: “Responses to 
this Section should be limited to 20 single-sided pages in total (not including resumes), and shall 
be prepared on 8½ x 11-inch paper using at least 12-point type with standard margins no less 
than 1.” Our visual proposal has text closer to the margin due to images and design. If the 
concern is that the proposal will be lengthy and wordy, that is not the case for us. 

A49. RFP section “VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, A. Management and Qualifications”, 
provides the instruction in which it is requesting proposals to be submitted. 

Q50. Under General Information point 4, can you explain what you mean by “term of such 
service?” Are you referring to the duration of our contract? 

A50. Yes. 

Q51. Point 9 asks for resumes from our staff. Our proposal introduces our team members and 
gives a short bio to describe our roles, skillsets, and experience. Will this be sufficient, or do you 
require detailed work history? 

A51. The Library intends to evaluate qualifications, expertise, prior experience, and availability 
of the proposed team assigned to the library, including expertise and experience pertinent to the 
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services requested in the RFP. Proposers should decide what is needed to communicate this 
information and how to best represent their team. 

 Q52. Do you have a preference to work with someone local or are you open to considering 
national agencies? 

A52. This RFP has not established local or national preferences. 

Q53. Can you help us understand the range of the budget available for this process? Is it more 
than $25,000, more than $50,000, or more than $100,000? 

A53. Please see the answer to question 1. 

Q54. Phase 1: Item 1 (market research) what exactly do you mean by “lifestyle information?” 
Please define. 

A54. Lifestyle information refers to consumer lifestyle and life stage information such as 
hobbies, charitable spending, car ownership, health interests, general interests and other similar 
information. 

Q55. Phase 1: Item 1 (market research) what are the “pre-defined customer profiles” that you 
refer to? What kinds of criteria are included in the profiles? 

A55. Please see answers to questions 23, 26, 29 and 42. 

Q56. Phase 1: Item 2 (Brand awareness survey): Who do you want to include in the survey? 
What kinds of customers or potential customers? Do you have a list that you want us to use as 
the basis for the survey do you want us to come up with the list? And do you have a number of 
constituents you’d like to survey?  

A56.   The brand awareness survey would include the general populace to understand and 
measure overall general brand awareness for Queens Library.  This survey could also include 
customers and non-customers. The Library has customers that it could recruit but not non-
customers.  The specific number would be the up to the proposer based on their expertise and 
knowledge. Proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q57. Phase 1: Item 2 (Brand awareness survey): Will you provide a list of your competitors for 
the benchmarking? 

A57. Please see the answer to question 10. 

Q58. Phase 1: Item 3 (Brand Audit): What media do you currently use for outreach, marketing, 
or communications? 
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A58.   The Library presently relies mostly on owned media channels such as our email, website, 
social media and magazine.  External media include other websites, Facebook, and some local 
magazines and newspapers. 

Q59. Phase 1: Item 3 (Brand Audit): Should the brand audit include online/web/social media as 
well as print, TV, or other media? 

A59.  Yes. 

Q60. Phase 1: Item 4 (Stakeholder interviews and/or focus groups): How many stakeholder 
interviews or focus groups do you envision? Of the five types of stakeholders you mentioned 
(customers, staff, elected officials, donors, partners) Are you interested in your customer base - 
age related: children, teens as well as adults? 

A60. Please see the answer to question 43.  

Q61. Phase 1: Item 4 (Stakeholder interviews and/or focus groups): Do you prefer interviews 
over focus groups, or focus groups over interviews, for any of these stakeholder types? 

A61. Please see the answer to question 43. Also the Queens Library is seeking an experienced 
and qualified firm to submit a proposal on how they intend to perform these services and to 
provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q62. Phase 1: Item 4 (Stakeholder interviews and/or focus groups): How many interviews or 
focus groups do you want us to conduct for each stakeholder type? 

A62. Please see the answer to question 43. 

Q63. Phase 1: Item 4 (Stakeholder interviews and/or focus groups): Are you willing to offer a 
monetary or other incentive to as an incentive for people to participate in these interviews or 
focus groups? 

A63. Proposers are to communicate in their proposal on how they plan to execute the scope of 
services. If a proposer believes that a monetary compensation or an incentive is required then 
they should include this information in their proposal and they should include any and all costs in 
their not-to-exceed fee.   

Q64. Phase 1: Item 4 (Stakeholder interviews and/or focus groups): Will you provide us with a 
list of stakeholders for our team to reach out to for interview purposes? 

A64. Please see the answer to question 43. 

Q65. Phase 1: Item 5 (Media analysis): By “media analysis” are you referring to external 
coverage of the Queens Library by media outlets (i.e., newspapers, magazines, TV, radio, third-
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party websites or blogs) or are you referring to the library’s own use of media (e.g., print or 
online advertising and promotion, email marketing, website, social media)? 

A65.  This refers to analysis of external media coverage of the Queens Library.Q66. Phase 1: 
Item 5 (Media analysis): Do you use a PR agency or other service to get media coverage? 

A66.  The Queens Library does  not use a PR agency. The Library relies on our own in-house 
communications staff. 

Q67. Phase 1: Item 5 (Media analysis): Do you have clippings or an online file of media 
coverage that we can use as the basis for this analysis, or do we need to go out and search for the 
coverage ourselves? 

A67. Proposers should be prepared to complete the full scope of work including Phase 1 item 5. 
Proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q68. Phase 1: Item 6 (Brand Metrics): How are you defining “brand metrics?” 

A68.  Measures that we can monitor on a continuous basis to measure overall awareness and 
performance of the Queens Library. 

Q69. Phase 1: Item 6 (Brand Metrics): Do you have any brand metrics data now? 

A69. No. 

Q70. Phase 2: Customer analysis: There appears to be a word missing in line two after the phrase 
“which should” and before the phrase “the major and minor customer segments.” Can you please 
provide the missing word? 

A70. Please see Addendum No. 1. 

Q71. Phase 2: Item 2, Customer personas and journeys: Can you please describe in a little more 
detail (or provide examples of) what you mean by “customer personas and their journeys?” And 
do you feel there is a disconnect or missed opportunity for your library constituents? 

A71.  Customer persona or profile refers to the type of customer and the journey refers to what 
they are trying to accomplish at Queens Library.  The purpose of this RFP is to select a firm that 
can identify any missed opportunities or prioritize our current opportunities.  

Q72. Phase 2: Item 2, Customer personas and journeys: Do you have existing materials or copy 
for this item that you would like us to review or work with? (The word “revise” in the RFP 
suggests that you do.) 

A72.  The Queens Library has some basic material which may be of some use to the successful 
proposer during the initial knowledge transfer. Proposers should plan to produce new work and 
provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 
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Q73. Phase 3 (Design & Deliver): “Provide a brand identity and architecture:” What do you 
mean by the terms “architecture” and “organization” in the context of this deliverable? 

A73.  Queens Library has many different departments or business units, programs and services. 
The brand architecture refers to an organization structure so that all the various components 
make sense to both external customers and internal staff. 

Q74. Phase 3 (Design & Deliver): Once the logo is created, will one of the deliverables needed 
be brand guidelines? (Currently not listed in the RFP). 

A74.  Yes, it is included in Phase 3, #5. 

Q75. Do you have a target date in mind for the deliverables of each phase? 

A75. As per RFP section, “VII. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS, B Costs”, proposers are to 
complete the table by providing  their not to exceed fees and their project schedules. 

Q76. Is there a budget the library is looking to stay within for this project overall, or per phase? 

A76. Please see the answer to question 1. 

Q77. What kind of outreach / marketing techniques do you use now? (ie emails, mailers, etc?) 

A77. Please see the answer to question 58. 

Q78. According to an article in the NY Times, the Queens Library offers titles in 59 languages 
(http://www.nytimes.com/2012/01/03/nyregion/queens-libraries-serve-59-languages.html). 
Should we conduct qualitative research and survey Queens residents in all of these languages? If 
not, which languages have the highest priority, or should we limit the research to English-
language speakers? 

A78. Please see the answer to question 28. 

Q79. Do you provide any programs or services for non-English speakers or people with limited 
facility in English? How important is this population to you? 

A79. Proposers wishing to respond to this RFP should familiarize themselves with the Queens 
Library and perform some research. A good source for proposers is the Queens Library web site 
which can be accessed with this web link: http://www.queenslibrary.org/  

Q80. “Customer Analysis: Analyze the customer and market research to deliver data-based 
insights which should the major and minor customer segments, the customers’ needs." Can you 
please let us know what word should be between the word “should” and “the”. (THIS IS IN 
PHASE 2, 1.) 

A80. Please see Addendum No. 1. 

http://www.queenslibrary.org/
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Q81. What is your review and approval process? Do you have regular meetings or typical 
timeframes for review, feedback and approval? Do you have a dedicated group of individuals 
that will guide and determine the phases towards the QPL brand? 

A81.  The Queens Library will work with the successful proposer on these matters. Proposers are 
to provide information regarding their experience and qualifications and to provide their not-to-
exceed pricing.  

Q82. Can we include visual work examples as an addendum to the proposal, in addition to the 20 
pages? And/or, can we include work examples in the digital copy (cd or thumb drive)? 

A82. The hard copies and digital copies of the proposal are to be identical. Also please see the 
answer to question 39. 

Q83. Are there any specifics regarding how the hard copies should be bound? 

A83. No. 

Q84. Market Research: What kind of data does the Queen’s library currently have on the 
identified 8-10 high level profiles - students, immigrants, job-seekers, adult learners, parents, 
older adults, and teens?  

A84.  The Queens Library does not have a significant amount of information. The successful 
proposer will be required to  gather the required data. Proposers are to provide their not-to-
exceed pricing. 

Q85. Market Research: Defining an ideal sample size for the Brand Awareness Survey requires 
some analysis and information not provided in this RFP, please clarify the Queens Library’s 
expectations or targets regarding number of survey responses. 

A85.   The Queens Library anticipates that a significant sample size will be required based on the 
overall population of Queens which is 2.3 million. The Queens Library seeks to obtain the 
services of an experienced and qualified firm that would know the best approach. In addition, 
proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q86. Market Research: Does the Queens Library have expectations regarding the format of 
Brand Awareness Survey? I.e. online, paper-based, intercept, etc.? 

A86.  The survey needs to reach a representative sample of Queens’s population. The Queens 
Library seeks to obtain the services of an experienced and qualified firm that would know the 
best approach. In addition, proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q87. Market Research: Will the Queen’s Library provide a list of participants for the Brand 
Awareness Survey in Phase 1 or are you looking to the proposer to acquire a list and recruit 
participants? 
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A87.  The Queens Library can assist with the recruitment of customers but not non-customers. 
The Queens Library seeks to obtain the services of an experienced and qualified firm that would 
know the best approach. In addition, proposers are to provide their not-to-exceed pricing. 

Q88. Media Analysis: Does the Queen’s Library have statistics on its media coverage in the last 
year? 

A88.  No. 

Q89. Should the “Doing Business Data Form” be sent with the RFP response materials?   

A88. Yes. As per RFP section “IX. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS AND CONDITIONS” item 
4., “Proposers must fully execute the forms contained in Attachment 1 and Attachment 3 and 
submit them with its proposal.” 

Q89. Is it a requirement to address all elements of phases 1, 2 and 3? 

A89. Yes. 

 

 

 

 


